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MOTION TO ALLOW FILING OF LESSTHAN NINE COPIES

AmerenEnergyGeneratingCompany(“Ameren”), by and throughits attorneys,

McGuireWoodsLLP, respectfullyrequeststhat theBoard allow it to file less thannine

copies of its Petition for Review of a CAAP Permit. The Petition includeslengthy

exhibits, including the Permit. Ameren hasattachedthe original and four copiesand

submits that submitting five additional copieswould be anunnecessaryexpenseand a

burdento both PetitionerandtheBoard.

WHEREFORE, for the reasonsstated in this Motion, Ameren respectfully

requeststhat it be allowedto submitan originalandfour copiesof its Petitionfor Review

and Exhibits insteadofninecopiesotherwiserequiredby Boardrules.
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By:___________
,4ne of its Attorneys
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We hereby file our appearancesin this proceeding,on behalfof Petitioner,
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Dated: November3, 2005

Jptpes . Harrington David L. Rieser
tiorneyARDC No. 1 13280~ AttorneyARDC No.: 3128590

McGuireWoodsLLP
77 WestWackerDrive, Suite4100
Chicago,IL 60601
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(“Petitioner” or

“Ameren”) pursuantto Section40.2 of Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct (“Act” or

“15 ILCS 5/40.2” and “35 Ill.Adm.Code § 105.300 et seq.”). Petitionerpetitions for

hearingbeforetheBoardto contestthe decisionsofthe Illinois EnvironmentalProtection

Agency (“Agency”) to include certain conditions and make other decisions in the

issuanceof the permit datedSeptember29, 2005 (“Permit”) and issuedunder theClean

Air Act Permit Program(“CAAPP”) or (“Title V”) set forth at Section39.5 of the Act

(415 ILC 5/39.5)for theMeredosiaPowerStation(“Meredosia”). Petitionerrequeststhat

theBoardrecognizethat thePermit is not final andeffectiveasamatterof law or, in the

alternative, stay this Permit pursuant to 35 Ill.Adm.Code § 105.304(b) during the

pendencyof this Petition for Review. In support of this Petition, Petitionerstatesas

follows.
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I. BACKGROUND

1. Petitionerownsandoperatesacoal-firedpowerplant for thegenerationof

electricity known as the MeredosiaPlant located at 800 South Washington Street,

Meredosia,MorganCounty,Illinois.

2. This Plantconsistsof five boilers,Boiler MBI (a CombustionEngineering

Boiler with nominal capacity of 505 mmBTU/hr), Boiler MB2 (a Combustion

Engineering Boiler with nominal capacity of 505 mmBTU/hr), Boiler MB3 (a

CombustionEngineeringBoiler with nominal capacityof 505 mmBTU/hr), Boiler MB4

(a CombustionEngineeringBoiler with nominal capacityof505 mmBTU/hr) andBoiler

MB5 (a CombustionEngineeringBoiler with nominalcapacityof 2,784 mmBTU/hr) as

well as Boiler MB6 (a Foster WheelerResidualOil-Fired Boiler with nominal heating

capacityof 2,052 mmBTU/hr), along with ancillary equipment,including coal handling

andcoalprocessingequipment.

3. The MeredosiaPlanthasa nominal capacityof about563 megawattsof

electricity. It employsapproximately100people.

4. Meredosiais a major sourcesubjectto the CleanAir Act Title V Permit

Program.On September01, 1995, Amerenfiled an applicationfor a CAAPPPermitwith

the Agency. The Agency issueda draft/proposedPermit for the public and USEPA’s

reviewonJune28, 2003. Thatreviewendedon September28, 2003. TheAgency issued

a draft Permit anddraft responsivenesssummaryon July 19, 2005. It providedfor a 10

day commentperiod ending August 1, 2005. The Agency issueda draft Permit for

USEPAreviewon August 15, 2005.
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5. Ameren filed commentson various proposedpermits on January,2005

(Exhibit A), and August 1, 2005 (Exhibit B), aswell asparticipatingin joint comments

filed by theAir Utility Groupof Illinois (“AUGI”) on September23,2003 (Exhibit C).

6. On September29, 2005, theUSEPARegionV postedadocumententitled

“Clean Air Act PermitProgram(CAAPP) Permit” for theMeredosiaPowerStationdated

September29, 2005 with an expiration dateof September29, 2010, Application No.

95090010;I.D. No. 137805AAA on its website,a copy of which is attachedheretoand

madeaparthereofasExhibit D.

7. AmerenreceivedthePermit in the mail on October4, 2005.

8. Ameren hereby petitions for review of the issuanceof the Permit and

particularly the inclusion of the following identified terms and conditionsthereofand

asks the Board to reverseand remandthe Permit to the Agency specifically for the

purposeofremovingsaidconditionsorrevising thePermitasrequestedherein.

9. Amerenfurtherrequeststhatthe Boardenterits orderrecognizingthat the

Permit is not final and effectivependinga final decisionof the Board and theaction by

theAgency implementingthat decisionor, in the alternative,issueits Orderstayingthe

Permit.

10. Amerenspecificallypetitionsfor reviewof thePermit as a whole and the

conditionsset forth below for thereasonsstated.

II. STAY

11. The Permit is a license within the meaning of the Administrative

ProcedureActS ILCS 100/10-65.
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12. As a license,it is subjectto 5 ILCS 100/10-65(b)whichprovides:

When a licensee has made timely and sufficient
applicationfor therenewalof a licenseor a newlicense
with referenceto any activity of a continuingnature,the
existing license shall continue in full force and effect
until the final agencydecision on the application has
beenmade unlessa later date is fixed by order of a
reviewingcourt.

13. No “final agencydecisionon the application” on thePermit occursuntil

the Pollution Control Board rules on this Petition for Review. See Borg-Warner v.

Mauzy,100Ill. App. 3d 862 (1981),427 N.E.2d415 (Ill.App.Ct. 1981).

14. Therefore,pendingadedisionby this Board,the Permit is not in effector,

at aminimum,thecontestedtermsare not in effect.

15. The Board should issueits orderfinding that the termsof the Permit are

not in effect pendingits final decisionand any final action of the Agency implementing

theBoard’sdecision.

16. If the Board doesnot enteran order asrequested,it should enterits own

order stayingthe Permit or, in the alternative,staying the contestedterms pending its

final decision.

17. As set forth herein,the Permit containsnumerousConditionswhich are

illegal, unsupportedin law or fact or otherwiseunreasonable.Manyof theseConditions

are impossiblewith which to comply or imposean unreasonableburdenuponPetitioner.

Moreover, a stay would not imposea severeburdenon the Agency or the public since

this Permit Application hasbeenpending since 1995 and a further delay in imposing

theseConditions,to theextent they are valid, will prejudiceneitherthe Agency nor the

public. Moreover, Petitionerwill remain subjectto all requirementsof the law and

4
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regulationsand prior Permits during the pendencyof this Petition. Furthermore,as

documentedbelow, Petitionerhas a substantiallikelihood of successon the merits.

Variouscritical Conditionswere imposedin violation of the law, without propernotice

and an opportunity to comment,and without basis in law or fact or are otherwise

unreasonable.

III. EFFECTIVE DATE

18. a. The Permit statesthat it was issuedSeptember29, 2005. An e-

mail datedSeptember29, 2005, 7:18 PM, stating the Permit was postedon theUSEPA

websitewaseffectively receivedby Amerenon thenextbusinessday.

b. The Permit is apparentlyintendedto be effective September29,

2005,the dateit waspurportedlyissued. ThePermit itself doesnot containany effective

date. The USEPA RegionV websitewhere it was originally postedstatesthat it was

effective September29, 2005. It containsnumerousterms and conditions which are

apparentlyintendedto be immediatelyeffectiveor which requireimmediateaction by

Petitionerto comeinto compliancewith very shortdeadlines. Most of theseconditions,

whether otherwise contestedor not, are not contained in any prior applicable law,

regulationor permit and significant conditions were not containedin any prior draft

permit issuedfor public comment. This purportedlyimmediatelyeffectivepermit fails to

give Petitioneradequatenotice of what is requiredor adequatetime to take action to

comply. As such,it is unreasonableand contraryto law anda violation of due process.

The Permit should be remandedto the Agency in order to provide adequatetime to

comply with thosetermsof thePermitthat areotherwisefoundto be valid.
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Amerendid not receive the signed Permit until October4, 2005.

Posting on the federal websiteand e-mail notice of such posting doesnot constitute

delivery to Ameren. The Permit should not be deemedeffectiveprior to its delivery to

thePermitteein final form by theAgency. In particular,if thePermit is deemedeffective

on September29, 2005, the two days remaining in the third quarterwould require

Amerento havetakenactionon thesedaysandto file reportsfor thetwo daysof thethird

quarterwhenthePermitwould be deemedeffective. Amerenhad no official noticeof the

Permit,no opportunityto comply with thetermsandconditionsthereof,andno reasonto

have created or maintained the records required to file such quarterly report.

Furthermore,filing sucha quarterly report or other documentsfor a two-day period

would be auselessgestureandimposean unreasonableburdenuponAmeren.

IV. GENERAL REPORTINGREQUIREMENTS

19. (a) Conditions5.6.1(a) and(b) requirerecordkeepingof emissionsof

mercury,hydrogenchloride,andhydrogenfluoride.

(b) Thereis no basisin stateor federal law or regulationsfor requiring

reportingof mercury,hydrogenchloride or hydrogenfluoride. Thesefacilities are not

subjectto federal regulationsasHazardousAir Pollutantsand thereis thereforeno basis

for requiringsampling,recordkeepingor reportingfor thesesubstances.

20. (a) Conditions5.6.2(b)and(c) requirePermitteeto retainandprint, on

paper, records retained in an electronic format and ffirther requirePermittee,upon

request,to submit copiesof any electronicrecordsrequiredto be kept underthe permit

but nototherwisesubmittedto theAgency.
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(b) Theseconditions imposean unreasonableburden upon Permittee.

Papercopiesof records retainedin electronic format are generallyneither useful nor

required.

21. (a) Condition 5.6.2(d)provides:

For certain recordsrequiredto be kept by this permit as
specifically identified in the recordkeepingprovisions in
Section 7 of this permit, which records are a basis for
control practicesor other recordkeepingrequiredby this
permit, the Permitteeshall promptly submita copy of the
record to the Illinois EPA when the record is createdor
revised. For this purpose, the initial record shall be
submittedwithin 30 daysof theeffectivenessofthis permit.
Subsequentrevisionsshall be submittedwithin 10 daysof
the date the Permittee begins to rely upon the revised
record.

(b) Therequirementto submitall records,apparentlyincluding forms

of records,within 30 days or whencreatedor revised,is overly vagueand burdensome,

servesno usefulpurposeandis otherwiseunreasonableand unsupportedin law.

22. (a) Condition 5.7.1 specifies General Source-Wide Reporting

Requirements.It requiresthat, “[t]he Permitteeshall promptly notify theIllinois EPA of

deviationsof thesourcewith thepermit requirements.”

(b) Theconditiondoesnot defineeither“promptly” or “deviation” and

is thereforeoverly vagueanddoesnot give thePermitteefair warningofwhat is required.

Permitteesuggestedalternativesduring thecommentperiodbut nonehavebeenadopted.

Specific reportingrequirementsfor thespecific terms of the permit have beenprovided

andshouldbe sufficient for any reasonablepurpose.

7
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V. COAL FIRED BOILER

Calculated95%UpperToleranceBoundfor Opacity

23. (a) Condition7.1.9(c)(ii) providesthefollowing recordsarerequired:

Recordsfor theaffectedboilersthat identif~ithe upper boundof the 95%
confidenceinterval (using a normaldistribution and 1 minute averages)
for opacity measurementsfrom the boilers, considering an hour of
operation,within which compliancewith theapplicablelimit in Condition
7.1.4(b) is assured,with supporting explanation and documentation,
including resultsof historic emissiontests. At a minimum, theserecords
shall be reviewedandrevisedasnecessaryfollowing performanceof each
subsequentPM emissiontestson the affectedboilers. Copies of these
records shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA in accordancewith
Condition5.6.2(d).

(b) Standing on its own, this provision requires calculation of a

statistical limit based on the incorrect assumptionthat the opacity readingsand the

particulateemissionratebeara consistentmathematicalrelationshipto eachotheracross

a rangeof operatingconditions. Therelationshipbetweenopacity and particulatemass

emissionsvaries with changesin fuel supply (different coals), the performanceof the

particulate control equipment (electrostatic precipitator), the fly ash particle size

distribution and the refractiveindex of the fly ashparticles. Thus, no direct correlation

existsbetweenstackopacityandparticulatemassemissions. It alsoassumesthat thedata

will fit anormaldistributionwhich maynot be thecase.This requirementis notbasedon

soundscienceor statisticalmethods,evenif therelationshipwasestablished.

In addition,particulateemissiontestingpursuantto USEPA Method 5 is

doneundervery controlledconditionsnot necessarilyrepresentativeof a normalrangeof

operatingconditions. Suchtesting hasgenerallybeenperformedundernormaloperating

conditions rather than at maximum allowable particulate emission rates typically

resulting in emissionrateswhich are a fraction of theallowableemissions.Opacitydata

8
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representingopacity readings taken when the particulate emissions are at or near

compliancelimits are not available. Therefore,evenassumingthat therewas a realistic

mathematicalrelationshipbetweenopacity and particulatemassemissionsand that this

relationshipis properlycharacterized,the confidencelimit that would be calculatedfor

opacity would representa massemissionrate that is a fractionof theemissionlimit and

not in any meaningfully correlationto the allowable particulate emissions under the

permit.

24. (a) Condition7.1.9(c)(ii) furtherprovidesthat the recordsrequiredby

that section “shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA in accordancewith Condition

5.6.2(d).” Section5.6.2(d)provides,inter alia, “[fjor thispurpose,the initial recordshall

be submittedwithin 30 daysof theeffectivenessofthis permit.”

(b) In essencethe two sections together require the Permitteeto

calculatethe upper bound of the 95% confidenceinterval for opacity for eachboiler

underthePermit, maintaintherecords,and submitthemto theAgencywithin 30 daysof

theeffectivedate.This is not possible. In orderto attemptthe mandatedcalculationand

developthe records,there would needto be a current valid particulateemissiontest,

including correlatedopacity data,reflecting currentoperatingconditions. Suchtests are

not presentlyavailablefor all facilities subjectto this requirementandcouldnot be done

within the30 day period.To obtainsuchdatafor all thefacilities subjectto the identical

requirements could require several years depending upon the availability of the

generatingunits, theavailability of qualifiedstacktestingteamsandAgencypersonnelto

observethetests.If therequirementsof Condition7.1 .9(c)(ii) areto be retainedin some

form, it or Condition 5.6.2(d)must be modified to provide that what ever calculations

9
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must be done, will be done 180 days following the report of the next stack test for

particulatematterrequiredunderthepermit.

25. (a) Condition 7.1 .9(c)(iii)(B) provides that for eachhour when the

upper bound specified in Condition 7.1 .9(c)(ii) is exceededa record must be made

indicating the date, time, operating condition occurring at that time and “whether

particulatematter emissions may have exceeded[the applicable limit.]” Moreover

Condition7.1.10-2(a)(i)(E) requiresthat all recordspursuantto Condition7.1 .9(c)(iii)(B)

besubmittedwith thequarterlyreport.

(b) As set forth above, exceeding the upper bound specified in

Condition 7.1 .9(c)(ii) cannotreasonablybe correlatedto consistentparticulateemission

ratesand thereforemaintainingtheserecordswill not provideany useful informationand

merely imposean unreasonablyburdenupon the Permittee. Moreover, thereis no basis

on which Permitteecanestimatewhetherthe particulateemissionlimits mayhavebeen

exceededotherthan by looking at operatingrecordsand determiningwhetherequipment

is significantly malfunctioning. Condition 7. l.9(c)(iii)(B) is thereforeunreasonableand

contraryto law.

26. (a) Conditions 7.1.10-1(a)(ii) and 7.1.10-3(a)(i) require immediate

notification by telephone“for eachincident in which ... the opacity from an affected

boiler exceeds20 percent for five or more 6-minute averaging periods unless the

Permitteehasbeguntheshutdown...

(b) As originally proposed,this condition applied to five or more

consecutivereadings in excess of 20 percent. As written it is overly vague and

10
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burdensome.It would appearto apply to five or more such readingsover any periodof

time includingdays,weeksor months.

Additionally, the use of the term “immediately” is

inappropriateand vague. Without the benefit of a more thoroughdefinition, it could be

claimedthat the notificationmust takeplace the exact momentafter the eventoccurs.

This would compromiseresourcesthat should, at that critical moment, be performinga

numberof othertasksto remedythesituation. Further,the reviewnecessaryto determine

whetheror not the reporting is necessarymust be performedby those who may not

alwaysbe on the premises. This standardof “immediate” notice also fails to recognize

that theAgency is notalwaysavailablefor notification.

27. (a) In addition to the foregoing condition-by-conditionobjections,

therearenumerousconditionsin the permit that areoverly vagueanddo not provide fair

notice of what is required or even a method by which Permitteecould provide the

requestedinformation.

i. Condition7.1.10-2(a)(i)(E)requiresPermitteeto reportinstances

when a condition “may have exceededthe PM limit....” Similar conditions appear

elsewhere.

ii. Condition 7.1.10-2(d)(v) requiresinformation “for eachtypeof

recurringopacity exceedance”including elaborateanalysis of the possiblecausesand

alsorequiresinformationof “anynewtype(s)of opacityexceedances....”

(b) Eachof theseconditionsis overly vagueand burdensome.Theydo

not provide fair notice of what is required;they useterms which are not definedin the

Ii
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permit or in practice;andprovideno guidanceasto how theyareto be met. As suchthey

violateDueProcess.

28. (a) Condition 7.1 .9(g)(ii)(C)(V) requiresrecordsof estimatesof the

magnitudeof emissionsof PM and CO during startupsin cxceedenceof certain time

limits and whethertheseemissionsmay have exceededapplicablelimits. Condition

7.1 .9(h)(ii)(D)(III) requires that the same records and estimates be made during

malfunctionsandbreakdowns.

(b) There is no reasonablebasis in law or fact for making these

determinations,eitherin theamountof emissionsor whethertheyviolatedany applicable

conditions. Theremay be some basisof making generalestimatesof CO undersome

circumstances,but thereis no wayto makeaccurate,reliablemeasurementsthat couldbe

the basis of determinationsof exceedences.There is no accuratemethodfor making

realisticestimatesof PM and CO emissionsduring startupsor during malfunctionsand

breakdowns,includingno testdataor emissionfactors.

29. (a) Condition7.1.10-2(d)(iii) containsanotewhich statesin part:

“Because the Permittee is subject to the reporting
requirementsof theNSPS,40 C.F.R.60.7(c) and(d) for an
affectedboiler...

(b) This facility is not subjectto theNSPS,40 C.F.R.Part60, andthis

referenceand any requirementsor conditions expresslyor impliedly based on it are

contraryto law.

30. (a) Condition 7.1.10-3(a)(i)requiresopacity readingexceeding20%

mustbe reportedto theAgency.
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(b) Theproperopacity limit for theseboilersMB-l andMB-4 is 30%

and not 20%,becauseit is not subjectto NSPS,and the Condition should be corrected

accordingly.

31. (a) Condition 7.1.12(b) provides: “Compliance with PM emission

limits of Condition7.1.4(b)is addressedby continuousopacitymonitoring in accordance

with Condition 7.1.8(a), PM testing in accordancewith Condition 7.1.7, and the

recordkeepingrequiredby Condition7.1.9.”

(b) Condition7.1.10-2(d)(iv) underthe generalcaption“Reporting of

Opacityand PM Emissions”requiresquarterly reports“for periodswhenPM emissions

were in excessof the limitation in Condition 7.1.4(b),” including a detailedreportingof

opacity measurementsfor eachsix minute period during the exceedances,“[t]he means

by which the exceedancewasindicatedor identified, in additionto the level ofopacity,”

“a detailed explanationof the cause,”and a detailed explanationof the corrective

measurestaken. When readtogetherwith the other conditions in the permit set forth

above,thesesectionsclearly indicatethat thereis at leastapresumptionthat thePM limit

wasviolatedwhentheopacityreadingsexceedthe95%uppertoleranceboundcalculated

pursuantto thepermit and thattheAgencywill expecttheopacityreadingto be reported

as such.In essence,it appearsthat the 95%uppertoleranceboundbecomesa surrogate

for anewPM limit if not theenforceablelimit itself. Moreover,asdiscussedabove,this

new limit will not bear any necessaryrelationshipto the limit establishedin Illinois

regulationsfor PM emissionsfrom the boilers.This is in factcontraryto the statements

madein the September29 Agency ResponsivenessSummary(found in Record)which

13
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statedthat suchlimits could not be established. This new limit is not basedon any

legally applicablerequirementsand is thereforenota legallydefensiblerequirement.

Furthermore,this new limit will be establishedwithout any considerationof its

reasonablenessor achievabilityunder the normal rangeof operatingconditions for the

boilers, normal fuel supply variability and the normal range of control equipment

performanceand fly ashcharacteristicsdesignedto achieveconsistentcompliancewith

theState’sduly establishedemissionlimits.

VI. CARBON MONOXIDE

32. (a) Condition7.1.6provides:

As part of its operation and maintenanceof the affectedboilers, the
Permitteeshall perform formal “combustion evaluation” [sic] on each
boiler on at leasta quarterlybasis, pursuantto Section39.5(7)(d)of the
Act. Theseevaluation[sic] shall consist of diagnosticmeasurementsof
the concentrationof CO in the flue gas of the affected boiler, with
adjustmentsand preventativeand corrective measuresfor the boiler’s
combustionsystemsto maintainefficientcombustion.

(b) This condition purportedly requires a quarterly formal

“CombustionEvaluation” tied to CO measurementsin the flue gasto maintainefficient

combustion.“CombustionEvaluation” is not a term of art or sciencein the coal fired

boiler industry and is not definedin the permit and is thereforeoverly vague.It is well

known that CO levels in a boiler vary continuouslyover the normalrangeof operating

conditions. It is not feasibleto makeboiler adjustmentsfor CO at a singleloadpoint that

will thereafterbemaintainedthroughouttheentirerangeof boiler operation. Moreover,

tuninga boiler to minimize CO mayhavetheeffect of increasingNOx emissionswhich

aremore tightly regulated andof greaterenvironmentalconcern. Thereis no evidence

thattheCO emissionsexceedor evenapproachtheir allowablelimits. Furthermore,there
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is no regulatoryrequirementor basisfor inclusion of this requirementin thepermit. As

set forth in this Condition,theseevaluationsrequireperiodic testingof CO in theexhaust.

Suchtestsarenot necessaryoruseful for complianceor operation. CO concentrationsin

the exhaustduring stacktestsare a small fraction of ambientlimits. This requirement

would require installation and operation of unspecified monitoring equipment at

considerablecost. It is unreasonableandnot supportedby law or fact.

VII. STARTUP

33. (a) Condition7.l.9(g)(ii)(C) states:

If this elapsedtime is more than4 hoursfor BoilersMBI - MB4 or
6 hours for MB5 or if the Permittee’sstartupproceduresare not
followed:

I. A detailedexplanationwhy startup of the boiler was not
completedsooneror startupprocedureswere not followed.

II. Documentation for the startup procedures that were
followed.

III. The elapsedtime from initial firing of auxiliary fuel until
firing of theprincipal fuel wasbegun.

IV. The flue gastemperatureat which the ESPwasenergized,if
coalwasfired beforetheESPwasenergized.

V. Estimatesof the magnitudeof emissionsof PM and CO
during the startup, including whetheremissionsmay have
exceeded any applicable hourly standard, as listed in
Condition7.1.4.

(b) In essence,this requirementtreatsany startupexceeding4 or 6

hoursat this facility asbeingoutof theordinaryand requiringextensiveexplanation.On

thecontrary,asrepeatedlypointedout to theAgencyon therecord,in excessof 16 hours

is far more typical of startupsasboth the boiler and turbine generatorare brought to

appropriatetemperaturesandcoalis graduallyaddedto thefuel mix. Thereis no basisfor
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requiring the substantially greater records required by this condition or creating an

impressionthat startupsover 4 or 6 hoursareout oftheordinary.

VIII. TESTING

34. (a) Condition7.1.7(a)(ii)providesasfollows:

“PM emissionmeasurementsshall be madewithin 90 daysofoperatingan
affectedboilerfor morethan30 hourstotal in acalendarquarterata loadt
that is more than 2 percenthigher than the greatestload on the boiler,
during the most recent set of PM tests on the affected boiler in which
compliance is shown (refer to Condition 7.1 .7(e)(iii)(D)), provided,
however,that the Illinois EPA mayuponrequestof the Permitteeprovide
more time for testing (if suchtime is reasonablyneededto scheduleand
performtestingor coordinatetestingwith seasonalconditions).

* For this purpose,loadshallbe expressedin termsof

either gross megawatt output or steam flow,
consistentwith the form of the recordskept by the
Permitteepursuantto Condition7.1.9(a).”

(b) This condition requires retestingthe boiler if it operatesfor 30

hoursin a calendarquarterat a loadthat is morethan2% greaterthanthatduring its most

recentPM test. As the Agency is well awareandashasbeenpointedout in comments,

thereare periodsof peak demandon the electric grid including periodswhenthe grid

maybe in dangerof collapsebecauseof loading or lossof othergeneratingcapacitythat

it maybe necessaryto operateboilers over their ratedcapacityto protectthe integrity of

the electric grid. Furthermore,a 90 day window for conducting stack tests is not

reasonablebecausearrangingfor tests,schedulingwith the Agency and conductingsuch

testscannotgenerallybe accomplishedin that time frame. This condition penalizesthe

owner/operatorfor respondingto potentialemergencysituationsand otherwisefulfilling

its legal obligations.
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35. (a) Condition 7.l.7(b)(iii) provides that USEPA Methods 5 and 202

from 40 CFR60 AppendixA mustbe usedfor samplingParticulateMatter. In thenoteit

provides:

“Measurementsof condensablePM arealso requiredby USEPA Method
202 (40 CFR Part 51, Appendix M) or other establishedtest method
approvedby theIllinois EPA, exceptfor atestconductedprior to issuance
of thispermit.”

(b) Method 202 and similar methods are designed to test for

“condensableparticulates,” i.e., materialsthat arenot particulatesas emitted from the

stack but which may later condense to form particulates. These “condensable

particulates”arenot governedby any applicableemissionlimitation in law, regulationor

permit. Thetestis expensiveandcomplicated.It is alsonot reliable. Alternativemethods

arebeingdeveloped.Thereis no basisin law for requiringMethod202 testingand it is

not necessaryor useful in demonstratingcompliancewith applicableregulationsor the

permit itself.

IX. COAL HANDLING EQUIPMENT— coalreceiving,coaltransfer,
coalstorageoperations

Opacity

36. (a) Condition7.2.4(b)providesthatcoal handlingoperationsincluding

coal receiving, coal transfer and coal storage are subject to the 30 percent opacity

limitations recitedin Condition5.2.2(b)pursuantto 35 IAC 212.123.

Condition7.2.7 providesthat the sameoperationsshall be subject

to USEPA Method 9 for opacity on the scheduleand methodologyset forth in this

condition.
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Condition7.2.9(g)requiresrecordsof theopacitymeasurementsto

be kept.

Condition 7.2.12(a) provides that compliance with 7.2.4 is

addressedby, inter a/ia, 7.2.6(a),7.2.7 and7.2.9.

(b) These conditions are improper. Emissions for coal handling

equipmentnot exhaustedthrougha stackor control deviceare strictly fugitive in nature

in that they arenot emitted from stacksor other similar confinedopeningssuitablefor

controls.As suchtheseemissionsaresubjectto the fugitive emissionstandardin 35 IAC

212.301.Thereis no basisin the law or regulationsto subjecttheseemissionsto opacity

limitations, testingormonitoring.

InspectionRequirements

37. (a) Condition 7.2.8(a) provides that monthly inspections of the

operationsincluding control measuresmust be monitored by “personnel not directly

involved in theday-today [sic] operationsof theaffectedoperations.”

Condition 7.2.12(a) provides that compliance with 7.2.4 is

addressedby 7.2.8.

(b) There is no reasonablebasis for requiring inspectionby persons

not involved in the operation. Only those people involved in the operationshave the -

detailedknowledgeof the equipmentand processesto adequatelycany out such an

inspectionsafely. To requirethirdpartieslacking suchfamiliarity with theprocesswould

defeatthepurposeofthe inspection.
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38. (a) Condition 7.2.8(b) requires detailed inspection of the dust

collectionequipmentat least every 15 months while theoperationis out of serviceand

furtherrequiresan inspectionbeforeandafterany maintenanceandrepair.

Condition 7.2.12(b) provides that compliance with 7.2.6(a) is

- addressedby 7.2.8.

(b) Requiring the equipmentto be out of serviceimposes a severe

burden on operationsand requiring an inspection before and after each repair is

unnecessaryand wasteful. Inspectionsand maintenanceshould be carried out in

accordancewith the manufacturer’srecommendationsor industry experience.Moreover,

requiring the facility to be taken out of servicefor such inspectionsand to requirean

inspectionbeforeandafter any repairor maintenanceis unnecessary,unreasonableandit

does not bear a reasonable relationship to environmental compliance. These

requirementsareoverlyburdensomeandserveno valid purpose.

39. (a) Condition 7.2.9(e)(ii) provides that the Permitteemust maintain

recordsof estimatesof the magnitudeof PM emissions“for eachincidentwhen any

affectedoperationoperatedwithouttheestablishedcontrolmeasures.”

(b) Thedeterminationof the magnitudeof PM emissionsasattempted

to be enforcedheredoesnot correlatewith otherrelevantconditionsor commonindustry

practices. PM emissions from this operation are generally fugitive. There is no

reasonablebasisfor makingestimatesof emissionsduring malfunctionsor breakdowns.

Theycannotbe measuredand thereareno applicableemissionfactorson which to base

suchestimates.
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40. (a) Condition7.2.10(b)(i)(A)providesthat during continuedoperation

ofan affectedprocessduring malfunctionor breakdownthe Permitteemust“immediately

notify” the Agency “for eachincident in which the opacity from an affectedoperation

exceedsor mayhaveexceededtheapplicableopacitystandardfor five or more6-minute

averagingperiods.”

(b) Emissionsfrom coal handlingare typically fugitive. As set forth

hereinopacity limitations do not apply to fugitive emissionsand thereis no reasonable

basisfor measuringopacityunder thesecircumstances.Moreover, thereis no basisfor

counting the “five or more” exceedences,if they could be measured,unlessthey are

continuousor within acertainperiodof time.

Additionally, the useof the term “immediately” is inappropriate

and vague. Without thebenefit of a more thoroughdefinition, it couldbe claimedthat

the notifi~ationmust take place the exactmomentafter the eventoccurs. This would

compromiseresourcesthat should, at that critical moment,be performinga numberof

othertasksto remedythe situation. Further, thereview necessaryto determinewhether

or not thereportingis necessarymust be performedby thosewho may not alwaysbe on

thepremises.This standardof“immediate” notice alsofails to recognizethattheAgency

is not alwaysavailablefor notification.

41. (a) Condition 7.2.10(a)(ii) statesthat “~n]otificationwithin 30 daysfor

operation of an affected operation that was not in compliance with applicable

requirementsin Condition7.2.6(a)that continuedfor morethan 12 operatinghoursfrom

thetime thatit was identified.”
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Condition 7.2.6(a) deals with the implementationof emission

controlmeasuresandtheaccompanyingworkpracticesandoperationallimits.

(b) The natureof fugitive emissionscompliancemeasuresrequiredby

Condition7.2.6(a)makessuchreportingmeaningless.Forexample,manysuchmeasures

areperiodic, i.e., every so many daysor asneeded,(e.g., one need not spraywater on

coal handling when it is raining). Certain suchmeasuresmay not be neededfor

compliancewith applicablerequirements.

42. (a) Condition7.2.10(b)(ii)(C)requiresthePermitteeto submitwith the

quarterly reports the aggregatedurationof all incidents during the quarter in which

affectedoperationscontinuedto operatewith excessemissionsduring malfunction or

breakdown.

(b) Thedeterminationof themagnitudeof PM emissions,asattempted

to be enforcedhere,doesnot correlatewith otherrelevantconditionsor commonindustry

practices. PM emissionsare generallyfugitive. UnderCondition 7.2.8(a),the Permittee

is only required to make monthly inspectionsof affected operationsand associated

controlmeasures.Thereare a numberof reasonswhy monthly inspections,ratherthan

continuousinspections,areenforced,and it is well-establishedthat this monthly standard

is reasonable,sufficient, effective, and fair. Therefore,it does not correlatethat the

Permitteeshould be askedto makeestimatesof emissionsduring eachinstancewhen

operationscontinuewithout controlmeasures.
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X. COAL PROCESSINGEQUIPMENT

43. (a) Condition 7.3.4(b)providesthatcoalprocessingoperationswill be

subject to the opacity limitation referencedin Condition 5.2.2(b)pursuantto 35 IAC

212.123.

Condition 7.3.6 requireswork practices and other methods to

assurecompliancewith Condition7.3.4.

Condition 7.3.9(g) requires records of opacity readingsto be

maintained. -

Condition 7.3.12(a)providescompliancewith 7.3.4be assuredby

applicationsof Condition7.3.6(a).

Condition 7.3.7(a)(i) requiresthat opacity be determinedpursuant

to USEPATestMethod9.

(b) As set forth abovewith respectto coal handlingequipment,those

emissionsfrom coal processingwhich are fugitive in natureand do not exit througha

stackor otherconfinedopeningare not subjectto the opacity limitations but aresubject

to the fugitive dust rule 35 JAC 212.301. As suchthey are not subjectto the opacity

limitations of 35 IAC 212.123.

44. (a) Condition 7.3.7(b) requires USEPA Method 5 sampling of all

“stacksor vents”from thecoalprocessingoperationsuponrequestfrom theAgency.

Condition 7.3.12(b) requires that compliance with Condition

7.3.6(b)be assuredby Condition7.3.7.

(b) USEPA Method 5 is not applicableto testing of vents or even

stacksthat do not haveregular flow conditions. This requirementis thereforeimproper
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(b) Theseconditionsareunreasonableandunsupportedin law andfact

for thereasonsstatedwith respectto 7.3.6.

48. (a) Condition 7.3.9(e)(ii) provides that the Permittee must maintain

recordsof the magnitudeof PM emissions“for eachincidentwhenany affectedprocess

operatedwithout theestablishedcontrolmeasures.”

(b) Thedeterminationof themagnitudeof PM emissionsasattempted

to be enforcedheredoesnot correlatewith otherrelevantconditionsor commonindustry

practices. PM emissions from this operation are generally fugitive. There is no

reasonablebasisfor makingestimatesof emissionsduring malfunctions. Theycannotbe

measuredandthereareno applicableemissionfactorson whichto basesuchestimates.

49. (a) Condition7.3.10(b)(i)(A) providesthat during continuedoperation

of an affectedprocessduring malfunctionor breakdownthePermitteemust“immediately

notify” the Agency “for eachincident in which the opacity from an affectedprocess

exceedsor mayhaveexceededtheapplicableopacitystandardfor five or more6-minute

averagingperiods.”

(b) Emissionsfrom coal processingequipmentare typically fugitive.

As set forth hereinopacity limitations do not apply to fugitive emissionsand thereis- no

reasonablebasisfor measuringopacityunder thesecircumstances.Moreover,thereis no

basisfor countingthe“five or more”exceedences,if theycould be measured,unlessthey

arecontinuousor within acertainperiodoftime.

Additionally, the useof the term “immediately” is inappropriate

and vague. Without the benefit of a morethoroughdefinition, it could be claimed that

the notification must takeplacethe exactmomentafter the event occurs. This would
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quarter. Petitionerhasno objectionto submittingsuchinformationwithin thirty daysas

requiredby federal regulations.However,thequarterlyreportsrequiredunderCondition

7.4.10-2(a)(iii)requiresubstantiallymoreinformationthan40 C.F.R.60.45(g)which will

requiresubstantialadditional time and effort to compile. OtherCAAPP Permitsfor this

industryallow sixty daysto submitsuchreportsfor thefirst four quartersand allow forty-

five daysthereafter. It is unreasonableto allow lesstime in permitswhich also mustfile

reportspursuantto 40 C.F.R.60.45(g).

55. Petitioneralso objectsto any otherCondition of the Permit relatedto or

incorporatingtheConditionsobjectedto herein.

56. Furthermore,many of the Conditions were included in the Permit in

violation of Section 39.5(q) of the Act 415 ILCS 5/39.5(q), as well as 40 C.F.R. §

70.7(a)(5) in that the Agency failed to provide notice to the public, including an

opportunityfor public commentsand ahearingon theseconditionsof the Permit; failed

to “prepareadraft permitanda statementthat setsforth the legal andfactualbasisfor the

draft CAAPP permit conditions, including referencesto the statutory or regulator

provisions and also failed to give notice of a draft CAAPP permit including these

conditions to the applicant. Inclusion of these conditions without the notice and

opportunityto commentprovidedby law deprivesthePermitteeof Due Processof Law

in violation of the Illinois andUnited StatesConstitutions. This failure is sopervasive

that theentire Permit shouldbe remandedfor propernotice and commentin accordance

with theBoard’sfindings.
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